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 Pat Fautry, Jessie Latham Perkins, Bettie Tilley, Female


  Pat Fautry:
This is March 28, I’m Pat Fautry: with Bettie Tilley and we’re speaking with Mrs. Percy Latham Perkins.
Jessie Latham Perkins:
No, Jessie.

Pat Fautry:
I mean Jessie.  Jessie Latham Perkins.  J-e-s-s-i-e L-a-t-h-a-m Perkins.  We’re at 1428 Forest – 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
1728.

Pat Fautry:
1728 Forest Street in Memphis.  And we wanted to come talk with Mrs. Perkins because she had a lot of information about the Evergreen Civic Club in the very early days, and she had some records about it.


Mrs. Perkins, tell us what you remember about the formation of that club.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Well, we moved out here, reading old diaries since I’ve been looking up this.  I saw that the men met in the homes to start with, so did the ladies.  It was a men’s Evergreen Civic Club and also a ladies’.
[0:01:00]

And they met in the homes to start with, and the ladies always disappeared when the men arrived.  But then when they would have their elections of the President they were almost like a Presidential election.  They’d have a white ticket and a green ticket and much carrying on and do an awful lot about it.

And the ladies would meet; they would have a musical and like a little tea.  They was like that.  I don’t know what year they bought the home over there which had been Galloway’s first home after he married his second wife.  That is a white stone house called Evergreen at Overton Park Avenue.

Pat Fautry:
Okay.
Jessie Latham Perkins:
I don’t know what year they bought that, but in later years that’s where they had the meetings.  And I talked last night to Mr. Jim Wood, he’s celebrating his 90th birthday today, - 
[0:02:00]

and I had asked him Sunday at church to tell me about the Evergreen Club.  And he said he couldn’t remember much, but he was on the committee that sold the Evergreen Club when money got tight and all.  And on that committee was Mr. Durham, of the Durham Home, and Douglas Johnson, and Jim Wood and Mr. E.O. Bailey, Sr.


And they sold the club house for $16,000.00.  Somebody on the committee wanted to donate $1,000.00 to the Salvation Army.  They did, then they gave the rest to Southwestern.

Pat Fautry:
You don’t know when this was sold?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
No, he did not know and I wouldn’t have remembered because, oh, it’s been – I don’t know.  Everybody I think is dead that would know.

Pat Fautry:
Yeah.

[0:03:00]

Jessie Latham Perkins:
I mean, what year, but you could, I imagine in the courthouse or somewhere, find out something about it now.

Bettie Tilley:
Probably the newspaper.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
The newspaper.  Now this is a picture of the ladies Evergreen Civic Club and all of their leaders –

Pat Fautry:
Oh, yeah.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
– their President.  And this is ’31, January of ’31.

Pat Fautry:
So there were still some – 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
And here are all the ladies.

Pat Fautry:
Do you have any idea what areas it covered then?  What area the Evergreen Club covered?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Well, I don’t know whether it went beyond the Parkway down just the same here to Poplar.  Now how you doing?
Female:
Hello, glad to see you.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Yeah.  Well, they’re trying to get me – 

Female:
They’re picking your brain.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
I know.

Pat Fautry:
What year was that?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
1911.

[0:04:00]


They – I mean, the Civic Club was meeting and only thing I know is when I’d read in the old diary that I had to play the piano, that the  ladies met here today and I had to help mother serve a plate of jam, or something like that.

Pat Fautry:
Yeah.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
That’s when they were meeting in the homes and different ones I have in there who gave the readings or something, and I didn’t give the readings but I’d have to play the piano.  And then maybe dad was entertaining, and that was all way back that long ago.

Pat Fautry:
So that was – it was certainly – 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
1912.

Pat Fautry:
– started in 1912.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
I mean, I don’t know just when it started, but that’s when it was gonna – may have been smaller then and grew.

Pat Fautry:
Right.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
But – and I do not know what year they got the clubhouse, but this is – let’s see, “[Inaudible] Women’s Club, one of the most important social events of the week will be the annual –

[0:05:00]


– President’s Day luncheon of the Women’s Evergreen Club which will be enjoyed at the Hotel Peabody at 12:30 o’clock. 
 
Wednesday afternoon, especially complimenting the    President, Mrs. William May Bricebrock.

Begin Segment 2: [0:05:14]

And sharing in the honors will be the past Presidents of the club, Mrs. Thomas W. Briggs, is Special Chairman for the occasion, and under her capable direction members and their guests can anticipate one of the most beautifully planned events ever given by the club.


Mrs. Briggs will welcome the guests; introduce Mrs. Jefferson Marmon who will preside and will present the sponsors, each of whom will in turn introduce the President for whom she is a sponsor.”


You want me to read all of it that they –
Pat Fautry:
That’s okay.  That gives us an idea.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
But anyway, here are the Presidents and over here is –

[0:06:00]


– Mrs. – oh, dog.  That’s – I know Mother there, that was when she was a Toast Mistress, but Mrs. – W.P. Chapman, I think she must have been about the first President because she lived down here at the corner of Forrest and the Ossums  bought her house.

Bettie Tilley:
Forrest and what?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Forrest and Hawthorne.

Bettie Tilley:
Okay.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
And then Mrs. Edgar Turner, but I imagine Mrs. Chapman must have been about the first because she – they were way back at the beginning when we moved here in 1911.  “And all worked valiantly for a clubhouse, and with funds raised during their terms of office and added to by Mrs. Bricebrock, the President in ’31.”  So that gives you – 

Bettie Tilley:
So that was – 

[0:07:00]

Jessie Latham Perkins:
– they got the house before that.

Bettie Tilley:
Right.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
“The handsome home now occupied by the organization has been realized.”  So it must have been about 1930, yeah, or ’31 that they got the clubhouse.  So from 1911 or ’12 they met in the homes.  When they’d have the elections it would be over at Snowden School, I know.  And they had white and red badges and all of the hats and they really had a lot of fun doing with it.
Pat Fautry:
What were some of the purposes of the club?  Did they have a purpose?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
It was a Civic Club to keep the neighborhood up and do whatever I guess was needed in the neighborhood.  I don’t know.

Pat Fautry:
Yeah, so it was a little social but certainly it was – 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
It was social and civic.

Pat Fautry:
Right.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
But they called it – it was the Men’s Evergreen Civic Club and I – 

[0:08:00]


– was trying to see here whether the ladies had the words Civic – the Woman’s Evergreen Club.  They did not.  The men had Civic in it, the women did not.  Theirs was more social, I think.
Pat Fautry:
Okay.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
And then they got others, they’re not – this was about when they sold it.

Pat Fautry:
When they sold it.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
That was, I imagine, during the Depression when money was tight, and things were all down because all Jim could remember – Jim Woods having his 90th birthday today, and I talked to him Sunday at church and then called him yesterday.  They had to wait until later on to talk.


 And he said, no, he didn’t get to go to many of the meetings, he was so busy trying to make a living for the family that when they needed any business things or arrangements or something to be made, I know Mr. E.O. Bailey, I imagine was about the first President, or among the first because in the real estate business–
[0:09:00]


– and living here all that time. 

Pat Fautry:
And Mr. Bailey’s not still alive, is he?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
No, he’s got all these sons.

Pat Fautry:
But all of his sons are?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
He had three or four of them, but whether they would remember or know anything more about it.  But anyway, I’ve given you here when they got the clubhouse and here the ladies present and here are the men.


“– bringing club plans completed for the annual luncheon Wednesday, February the 4th, 1940 will begin at the Parkview Hotel.”  And it goes on to tell – I remember a style show, because I remember I was in it holding – and I got the group of all the people, and everybody that went.  We got three columns of people there at the Parkview.

Bettie Tilley:
Didn’t want to leave anybody out.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
No, no, that’s all it did.  Public Speaking table and whatever this other – Sunshine table, Dramatic Arts table.

[0:10:00]


 Now you can get from that everything, the Dramatic Art table, the Bridge table, the President’s table, there’s a long list, the Bridge table, the Current Topics table, the Public Speaking table, the Sunshine table, the Dramatic Art table, the Hospitality and Clubhouse table, and the Flower table and the Good Fellowship table.  See why you’ve got two columns of people.

Pat Fautry:
It was really almost like the 19th Century Club then when they have all different – 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Everything there, that gives you all of that.  Now, let’s see what’s – 

Segment 3:[0:10:43]

“– they’re just Toast Mistress wearing a model of black [Inaudible] jet and satin with a small hat in harmony, and Mrs. S.G. Scott, President, wore a honey beige crepe with a spring – 

[0:11:00]


– hat to match.”  And I did find this, what the Toast Mistress said.  You want to hear?

Pat Fautry:
Oh, this is what your mother said?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
My mother.  Oh, everything – all the history with the church she wrote in rhyme, everything she ever wrote she wrote in rhyme.  “Another year has flown.  How swift has been the flight, and dear old 1914 is gone, though not yet out of sight.


And in the first month of this year, the new year of ’15 we come together a good crowd as we have ever been.  Tis the cause –,” I haven’t read this, “Tis the cause of Women’s Club, the Club of Evergreen, has lived and thrived and grown on the taproot unseen.  Twas the thought and love and work of your officers, earnest and true, that have made this – 

[0:12:00]


– dear club flourish and still as it right might to do.  I feel that just how faithful your Secretary’s been I just tell why Mrs. Stalls never has failed us with cards and minutes as well.”  I should have read this before.


– over to Snowden.  I told him I got this [Inaudible] he was die.  I said, “You are my poet.”  And he said, “What?  I never wrote a piece of poem in my life.”  I said, “I’ve got it here, Mark Swin Latham.”


When they graduated over at Snowden he was the Historian.  I don’t know what, but this will give some of the young ones that were in Snowden, “Another year has flown.”  Let’s see if this was the – 

Pat Fautry:
That’s your mother’s?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Oh, no.  This is all her writing.

[0:13:00]


Graduating from the Snowden School.  Mrs. Snowden, when they dedicated Snowden School, Mrs. Brinkley Snowden sang a solo.  I don’t remember what year but this is 1913.

Pat Fautry:
It was built in 1910.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Huh?

Pat Fautry:
It was built in 1910.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Um-hum, well, we moved out there, see, 1910 and ’11 – actually 1911 but before that.  So he went to Snowden, but I didn’t, I went to Central High. 


Oh, “Another year has flown.  How swift has been its flight, and we are here again to bid you all goodnight.  Parents, teachers, friends, and to your Professor Dugger who as our worthy Principal there’ll never be another. 


Of this great Snowden School we are the senior class.  Perhaps as you gaze from face to face you’ll wonder why we passed.  But it did.
[0:14:00]


Wayne Richards was always bright, and saucy, doth grin as well.  


John Henry and Solan were there all right as their exams did tell.  And old Scott Seals, the chauffeur.  At home we called him dumb, dim.  He really should have studied more but in kindness he never skimped.”


Well, at the beginning they had old [Inaudible]about 1913 they had a good seal.  But when we moved out here on Overton Park Avenue that was when they built Paisley Hall in 1912.  That’s the Galloway – they call it the Galloway place.  It was never called anything but Paisley Hall.


And I saw – I mean, I watched that being built.  [Inaudible] ran down there one day, jumped in the hole and broke his leg.  I remember that.

[0:15:00]


But I know it was finished when Roberta made her debut in 1912.  I remember I was invited to the party and I thought I was too young to go and I declined.  My mother and dad went to the reception and Mrs. Snowden and Roberta both said, “You go home and tell Jessie and Frank we will not accept their regrets.  They’ve got to come to the dance tonight.”


Well, I didn’t think a little high school girl ought to be going to a debutante ball, but I was sick anyway later.  But I did go, that was 1912.  And then I had a clipping here at – see what here.

When – look at this diary.  Oh, this is 1916.  Now where did I put the – oh, that’s a beautiful Christmas ball.  I’ve written down here.
Segment 4: [0:16:00]

“Most wonderful Christmas.  Oh, how wonderful it was to be a debutante in about a million American Beauty roses.” and all this that was said.  “And then went to the snowball at Colonel Galloway’s tonight for Robert.  I went with Mr. Beck.  Paisley Hall was beautiful place tonight.  I never saw anything so beautiful.  The ballroom was the beautiful scene of silver and – snow and ice.


The snowmen all at the entrance and there were Christmas trees everywhere.  Later there was a regular snow battle.  Everyone was given snowballs that was cotton filled with confetti.  And the confetti was in the form of icicles.  Oh, it was some party.  Oh, and we started off and oh then I don’t know what goes on.  All the boys they bother with the [Inaudible], all the Princeton men,” and all of this.  

[0:17:00]


Everything’s going on.  Let’s see here.  But something about – well, all of that is all personal, but this is written up in the paper.  “Paisley Hall, the palatial home of Colonel and Mrs. Robbie Galloway on Galloway Avenue,” which was wrong, “on Overton Park Avenue.”  This is a paper.
Pat Fautry:
Um-hum.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Galloway was the street over this way.  It didn’t even go – it went a block.  It covered a block, but it went to Autumn and then the next street was Galloway.


“Was the scene of a brilliant affair, entertaining the Christmas scene was carried out in the ballroom and was beautiful old-fashioned fringe Christmas cards, picture that went like a glittering snow and ice. 


The ceiling of the ballroom was trellis with vines through which tiny lights gleamed like stars through frosted globes –

[0:18:00]


– while suspended by thousands of invisible wires.  White winged snowflakes filled the air.”  They let them all come down.  It was really a most beautiful thing.  All the snow come down.  It’s a whole top floor as a ballroom, and the trees, just – it was gold like that.  Gold chairs lining everywhere.


But all of that came from the ceiling, then you were given snowballs that you threw.  They all scattered out and then the trees lined the drive all the way to the street, and of course, they would have people all calling the cars, I remember it.


Roberta’s debut, when I didn’t go, I really was sick and couldn’t go, but I would watch them calling the cars, the numbers out and they’d go on.  And then watch Bide Snowden would rush in with Roberta, he’d come with the car and chauffer one night and the next night, she’d go –

[0:19:00]


– out with Cotton Price in his racer.  We didn’t know which was gonna win, everybody dying to see.  And then in later – always so close to them all and I remember after Mrs. Galloway married the young man in later life and that didn’t work out to well, but mother and I were over one afternoon, she had us over.


And the maid – servants all came in and, “What are we gonna have for dinner tonight?”  She says, “I don’t care what.  Have whatever you all want and give me some of it.”

She was there alone, but they were still coming in finding out.  Let’s see if there was anything else mentioned here.  On that was the confetti, the punch was all like that and the tables and the dining room, picture of a rose garden in the center, which was a Dresden figure of a charming girl with a lapful of roses.  Every table, where, in the dining room.
[0:20:00]

Colonel and Mrs. Galloway will receive their guests with cordiality.  And of course, Roberta was married to Bide then, he won out.  And how she was dressed, that was that.
Pat Fautry:
Was this an annual affair at the Galloway home?  Was there a Winter Ball every year?  Or –

Jessie Latham Perkins:
No, no.

Pat Fautry:
This was just a –

Jessie Latham Perkins:
This was one.  There was another ball that she had for somebody in the service.  Oh, I remember that was a beautiful thing, but I don’t remember.  I haven’t come across a clipping.  

Then Roberta – I mean were not many big balls like that.  Roberta’s debut was afternoon and night.  That was in 1912.  The house was completed by then.  I think that was the first.  And then this was when I told you.

Pat Fautry:
Right, in ’16.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
1916.  And then I don’t remember the – where the name – what it was, of course, then you had the war come on then.

[0:21:00]


Robert was injured.  I remember he came back, something about his leg, I forgotten, I did have –
Bettie Tilley:
Robert Galloway?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Uh-huh, I did have some dates with him, but I remember he was limping some, but he got all right.

Bettie Tilley:
In World War I.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Then he married Miriam Mooney and –
Begin Segment 5: [00:21:16]
Pat Fautry:
What about the establishment of the zoo.  You were asking about it awhile ago.  The land and the –

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Well, to start with, they had that right about the – bear, I mean belonging to the ballpark and then they kept it over at the zoo.  We’d always go with Aunt Phyl on that.  I remember I had a little house behind, looked like my playhouse I’d had in my youth, I mean just to start with in that stone.


But when you go walking in the zoo, always go by and seen that.  And then different things just started.  And of course, Colonel Galloway got those beautiful stones from Memphis, Egypt and the others you’ve got records of that, I’m sure.  

Pat Fautry:
I’m not sure, but –

[0:22:00]

Jessie Latham Perkins:
But I came across those the other day, the two big stones and they had – they were at the entrance at the beginning.  I don’t know where they have them now, but it just kept growing a little bit.
Pat Fautry:
Who set aside the land?  How was the land actually set aside?  What was the process on that?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Oh, it was Overton Park.  It belonged to the city.  

Pat Fautry:
But it was already set aside by then?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Overton Park from the beginning.

Pat Fautry:
Oh, okay.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
It was Overton – never way anything but Overton – in Overton Park.

Pat Fautry:
Yeah.  Are the stones still there, Mrs. Perkins?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
I don’t know, they used to have one at the entrance, and I had a clipping I came across the other day somewhere with the two of them, but Colonel Galloway was – one of them from Memphis, Egypt he brought back.  I’ve forgotten where the other one.  And then they would have – oh, then I remember when they’d get maybe a elephant next or something, but then, the zoo just –
[0:23:00]


Has grown from that time on.  And then Peggy remembers when she was, “Remember the time that you got, what was it, the elephant got loose?”  Y’all going to Snowden School and had to go around somewhere else, and then of course the monkeys still get loose there from Monkey Mountain, and they’d feed them over there at Parkway House.


They would shoot tranquilizers into the monkeys trying to catch them.  The monkeys were smart enough, when they’d get it, they’d spit that part out and the people at Parkway House were feeding them because they’d come up on they balcony and see them, and they stayed over there.
Bettie Tilley:
The monkeys would come to visit, had to visit.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
They just stayed, and then they shipped them away afterwards, because they found out they knew how to get out away.  When they’d clean the moat, why they would get loose and get away.  And then did something worse than the elephant got loose.  Did the –

[0:24:00]


– tiger get loose once?

Pat Fautry:
It was in some adventure like that, something really dangerous, I know for sure, so –

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Yes, besides the elephant would get loose, they’d have a time getting him back, but there was something big out there once and then they – getting the children to Snowden, I remember getting Francis in 1st and Junior when they were loose, but –

Pat Fautry:
There was a that was a great adventure then, I – my memory’s not as good as yours, but I remember the excitement as a young child that something like a tiger –

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Well, no, they got loose and then getting through there.  But me and the zoo just kept on from the beginning.  And then I don’t remember what the next thing was, but we’d walk over to the zoo when it was maybe just a few things.


We used to go over there, they had the pavilion.  They had always had the dances in the summer.  Everybody had the dances there.  Every night there’d be a dance at the pavilion over in Overton Park.  Somebody private would –
[0:25:00]


– you – they didn’t have to pay you for it, all you’d do is reserve it ahead and they’d have an orchestra, used to be awful hot.

Pat Fautry:
Was there another pavilion, other than the one I remember over towards –
Jessie Latham Perkins:
Well the pavilion was here near the one where the – well, the picnic ground pavilion was always there.  That was for –
Pat Fautry:
That’s the one I remember.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
– the picnics.  Then this one, well I thought was still there, I guess they plowed it.  Art academy and all of that here.  I thought – here was a big – the Japanese garden, you remember they did away with during the war.

Pat Fautry:
World War II?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
But that was – because they were trying to get away, but they – this pavilion was – you mean it’s not there now?

Pat Fautry:
I don’t think so.

Bettie Tilley:
I don’t think so, no.  That’s new, the only one that I know of is the one over by the picnic –

Jessie Latham Perkins:
The over at the picnic grounds.  Well, this one was in front, over the, you know where the dough –
[0:26:00]


– boy is.  

Pat Fautry:
It was behind the doughboy?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
No, no –

Pat Fautry:
It was before, in front?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
This one – wait – west of the doughboy – across, over near where the pansy garden and all of that.  And it had, well, had the inside and then the outside all open, but then there was a up – I meant here was a big one, the seats all around the ends were always painted, seemed to me like green and white.


But they’d – every night we’d go to a dance there at the – over in Overton Park.  They’d have – get their own orchestra, but people would have it in the summer.  Wasn’t air conditioning anywhere, so that was outdoors, was a wonderful place.  They’d have them at Riverside, too, but it was harder to get to, to Riverside.  But no, every night there’d be a dance there.

Pat Fautry:
So, something else –


Jessie Latham Perkins:
And –

Segment 6: [0:26:58]

Pat Fautry:
– I believe Mr. Koppick mentioned at the history, and that was about Fairland.  Tell me about the location and the existence of it.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Well, Fairland was not where the Parkview is.

Pat Fautry:
Is it Fairland or Fairyland?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Fairyland.  East End, I mentioned – yeah, all about East End, I went out there, for Rudolph Valentino – I didn’t get to dance with him, I got – anyway, we talked to Rudolph Valentino, and that was the most wonderful evening ever when he was there.  

And then the big pav – oh, always East End was big; we’d go to East End every night.  You had the dancing and then all the rides, the tipping and all the figure eights and everything there.  And also the swimming and then ice skating and everything was at East End.  And as they said, they had made so much money that Fairyland, it was –
[0:28:00]


– over, you know where Bel Aire Woods is, across, down far, I mean, you know where Bel Aire Woods is.

Pat Fautry:
I don’t.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Y’all don’t and you live in Memphis.  It’s across from Overton Park over on south –

Pat Fautry:
South of Poplar.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
And it’s an entrance there and they’ve built apartments on Poplar up to it, but there’s a big entrance, Bel Aire Wood.  I remember the – oh, I don’t know whether that’s not the end of Cypress Creek, but there’s a always a big ditch that was down at the end.  And I know, I mean that’s the reason I can remember.  And that’s over there how far it went towards Madison I don’t know, but that’s where Fairyland was.

Pat Fautry:
It was really –

Jessie Latham Perkins:
East End was, see, on out much farther on Madison.

Pat Fautry:
Um-hum.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Way out, and they had always that dairy in between them there.
Pat Fautry:
Okay, I was gonna ask you if the dairy was over there.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Oh yeah, that was always –

[0:29:00]


– there.  I mean I don’t remember when, but in, later –
Pat Fautry:
Was that at first owned by the Skinners?  Is that – was that always owned by the Skinners as far as you know?

Bettie Tilley:
They were there very early.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
But anyway, East End was on beyond, I mean, there wasn’t a dairy when it was East End.  But over there was where East End was, all of that distance and the big – roller skating.  Everybody would go roller skate.  Oh, on a Saturday it was just jammed.  And then they had the outdoor pavilion for dancing and they would have shows.

Pat Fautry:
Well now was Fairyland successful?  Did it –

Jessie Latham Perkins:
I don’t know, I don’t see in my diaries say anything about going to Fairyland,  but going to Fairyland, remember it, but it must not have lasted long, because by the time I was doing everything, I don’t mention every night going to Fairyland like we’d go to East End.

Pat Fautry:
But it was the same sort of thing, and amusement park with rides?

[0:30:00]

Jessie Latham Perkins:
It was not as big –

Pat Fautry:
Maybe not as large.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
It was just somebody trying to – I mean thought it would be a good thing.  I don’t remember them having any shows at East End, they would – you had everything at East End.

There was shows and a big dance pavilion and the rides and then I think that’s the first pool we had anywhere.  They didn’t have a swimming pool in Memphis; we’d go to Linden Natatorium.  That was the ice house over on Linden.  That was the only place in Memphis you could swim when I was young.
Bettie Tilley:
Where was that, now?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Over on Linden.  Linden Natatorium they called it, it was the ice house where they made the ice.

Bettie Tilley:
And you had a swimming pool there?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Yeah, everybody’d go to Linden Natatorium.  Only place you’d go to swim.  Because nobody – except out at Gulch River, out at Raleigh, remember when the Porters were there, you know what a wonderful swimmers Mary Nell Porter is –
Pat Fautry:
Right, right, well, Jim’s a swimmer.
Jessie Latham Perkins:
– Maid of Cotton and everything there, but –

[0:31:00]


– you’d go out to Raleigh and swim.  It was awfully muddy, I just hated when we’d go out there, because Wolf River was so muddy.  But, because Mississippi people are always scared to swim in that.  Much too much respect to do it.  But there were – wasn’t such a thing as a swimming pool.  But then, of course, later on, I mean, they had all the swimming pools they opened up, and the great big one there at the fairgrounds, but –

Pat Fautry:
Let me ask you something about when you –

Jessie Latham Perkins:
– all ears, and I’d go out every night.  That’s why algebra teacher’s say, “I don’t know nothing about him going down there to have an examination.”  Said, “Jessie, she can make all A’s if you go out.”  You know, I nearly died there and Miss Mawler was my English teacher.  She never read anything but the death notices in the paper.  Never read anything but the death notices.  And I went to Covington to be in –
[0:32:00]


– a wedding, and I was gone for a week.  And I got back and I’d missed a test.  “[Inaudible] you take the test.”  Who’s that?  How she knew I was in the wedding, she read, because they had the weddings written up in the paper, but she never read anything but the death notices in the paper.


But she saw it and didn’t want me to take that test.  And then she’d look at me and she’d say, “The deep brown eye and the melting glue, she cannot choose between the two.”  That was Giles Coors and Dick Bodine.  

Pat Fautry:
Oh.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
“The deep brown eye and the melting glue, she cannot choose between the two.”  Now there’d just be talking, but she, I 
mean she was a marvelous teacher.  But I don’t remember if I died not getting an A there and I wasn’t trying for anything, I mean it was just easy with me didn’t have too hard about my Latin and all, because I’d get that. 
Begin Segment 7: [0:32:59]

I wouldn’t do like mother.  She’d go on and have one general [Inaudible] and not use a name to tell the whole thing through. But I mean I could concentrate in the study hall.  I didn’t study at night, because I just had a grand time.  But in study hall, I didn’t watch a fly.  I didn’t watch something else; I could sit down in study hall, and get it.


So with the gentlemen, they’d do anything.  I’d pull out these reports for all A’s, and then they’d pick up an old diary where I was going that night.  So it wasn’t very consistent.

Bettie Tilley:
Let’s get ahead very good all the time.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Huh?

Bettie Tilley:
Couldn’t get ahead with your children with that.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Well, anyway – well, they got by all right. 

Pat Fautry:
Now walking – to get to school you’d just simply walked to Snowden, your brother simply walked – 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Well, I didn’t have but – it wasn’t but a couple of blocks.

Pat Fautry:
For you to go to Central?

[0:34:00]
Jessie Latham Perkins:
Oh, going to Central?  We went in the machine every day, the machine.  The machine, we got a car in 1910, and we had to – when we were out at the old place had to let the top down every time, they couldn’t get in the stable with the top on.

Bettie Tilley:
Now when you’re saying “the old place,” you’re speaking of Greenlawn?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Yes.

Bettie Tilley:
Okay.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Out there on 7 that went the block that I hadn’t been there in 50 – oh, I have been in 50 years because when they do something special at the church I’d go back.


But I heard a minister making a talk over at our church like they would fear they were gonna have to take the church back.  No, Swain and I, some of us would have gotten it because if it isn’t used for a church it goes back to the people that donated it.  And my grandfather had given the property and I didn’t realize the will [Inaudible that’s here with the family –
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– all around the things.  


So he had given them their homes, and mother the last married, well, we lived in the house with Grandma.  But they sold that to the nigras for $70,000.00.  But they are not meeting their payment.  But I shouldn’t have opened my mouth saying anything.  Would you come over and talk to [Inaudible]?  I said, I called Swain, I said,  “You all make me so mad.  You sic everybody on me.”  


When Mimi Rig was – it was during the yellow fever, Swain didn’t know anything, “Call Sis, she’ll tell you.”

Bettie Tilley:
That’s what he told me.
Jessie Latham Perkins:
Then Mimi called and I said, “You’re not talking about Grandpa Latham.  He was 1836.  You’re talking about Grandpa Swain or Grandpa Porter.”  I said, “Because they were during the war.”  “No, I’m talking about your Grandfather Latham, the most wonderful man in the world.  Way back then he was trying to have them do something about sanitation –
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– in Memphis.”

Bettie Tilley:
Right, he was.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
And she nearly died.  I said, “Well, next door we’ve got the granddaughter of the Mayor at that time.”  “That man he was drunk.”  I said, “Shhhh.”

Bettie Tilley:
Who was that, now?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Park.  I said, “He’s kin to everybody in Memphis, all the Donalds and all everybody.”  And she had it.  Well, of course, I guess run in Memphis.

Bettie Tilley:
Right.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
But it was something.  But anyway, that – she said, “No, I meant ...”  Then she came out here and I had to hunt and hunt and go through everything to get all of the – you brought my book back, didn’t you?

Pat Fautry:
I have it.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Good. 

Pat Fautry:
Got it right here.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Yeah, that’s – Dr. Pierce out at Memphis.  They couldn’t find a word in the library about Grandpa Latham, and so he found out about me and he came by.  And he’d ask about things.  Well, I had connections of all four grand – he said, “I’ve never known anybody that had all four of them all the way back.”

[0:37:00]

And then he did everything on Texas, and my Grandfather Latham had married a married a daughter of Smith who was starting in Virginia.  Karen Harper and Norman Turner first monument anybody after the Revolution, for his father or uncle or something, they wanted to cut off his leg and she wouldn’t let them do it.  And she invented ice packs.


Well, I was telling this, I said, “I [Inaudible] in winter.”  And then somebody said, “They had ice houses.  They were able to keep ice in the house.”  Anyway, moving on.


But he went on out and started everything in Texas.  So he just was fascinated with that.  And I had his diary which I let him read, and he made me a copy.  He put it in the historical place but I think he could write many a book with that.

Pat Fautry:
With it.
Jessie Latham Perkins:
Oh, with the stories in there, oh, the way they tell of one –
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– man that was doing.  Grandpa was coming down the river with this whole flatboat of steeds and somebody stole them and then they got to a place where there were the coffee or something on there.  And I remember they were hidden man under the mattress.


They got that and they got in and they sat down on the mattress.  He began screaming.  And then going to New Orleans with $7,000.00 in his pocket and somebody stole it.  And he was taking it for somebody else and had to replace it.


He said, “That didn’t mean as much to me then now as $1.00 would.”  When he was starting out in Texas.  But all of that in it and going from Virginia all the way to, well, Covington was where they landed.  I mean, Randolph.  Well, actually that’s where Grandpa Latham started his paper.  That was bigger than Memphis.


And then the other day I had to tell them about, make a talk at the – 

Segment 8: [0:39:03]
Pat Fautry:
Ask you a little bit, when you moved out there, Mrs. Perkins, and Overton Park, was that the first street developed?  Have you all found out?  That’s sort of the first – when the nicer homes were on it or what?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
No, when we moved out there you see – 

Pat Fautry:
What was here in general – 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Oh, everything was here.  Where I’m living here except it’s not – when I was born – and one of my grandchildren – well, Chris, they were in Birmingham, and after Christmas we had a 0 – the weather dropped down to 0.  And my thermo coupler on the furnace went wrong.  If I’d have been here I’d have called, they come out and start the furnace right away.


But I got home to a completely frozen house.  Every pipe, every radiator, everything frozen tight.  They had to move all the radiators out.  They had to take the clapboard out of the house.  Every –
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– pipe out; everything had to be moved out of the house, all down.  And they – when they – there’s a tile bath up over there, see my – the Mondonaco’s lived here and they had about five boys.  So I call this the nursery, that’s where the – 
Bettie Tilley:
The Mondonaco’s had this house?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Lewis Mondonaco built this house.

Bettie Tilley:
Lewis Mondonaco.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Yes, and the Sparks next door here, and the architect, oh, what’s his name, Ferbrinder, next door, [Inaudible].  He was over here this side.

Bettie Tilley:
Frank.
Jessie Latham Perkins:
Ferbrinder.

Bettie Tilley:
Was it Frank or Lewis?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
The architect.

Bettie Tilley:
I know, I just didn’t – 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
And the man next door, all the houses, and the people are still – I mean, live there.  Then on down the Hyde’s, Mrs. Hyde moved out and – 

Bettie Tilley:
Mrs. Jo Hyde?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
No, it was Josephine Hyde’s mother, Will Hyde, wasn’t she?

Bettie Tilley:
Will.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
The next house.  And then, oh, then others down – 
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– there where Mrs. Myra lived.  Then the Jones’ over on this side, the Bruce next door, Arthur Bruce.

Bettie Tilley:
Arthur Bruce.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Um-hum.  Well, I meant – 

Pat Fautry:
All these houses were built around 1910, 1912?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
1909 or ’10.  We moved out here – our house was being built.  So we built in 1910.  Then we moved into it in 1911.  And we would go back to the old church on Sunday.  Now, over here was Glenmary, that was where Colonel Galloway had lived with his first wife.  And then the Carruthers bought that.

Bettie Tilley:
Okay, this house that was right here?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Over here where we bought it for Evergreen Church from the Carruthers and then outgrew it before they built the bigger church, and then built Evergreen across from Southwestern.

Pat Fautry:
The house is still there?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Huh?

Bettie Tilley:
No, that house is not there.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
I mean it was this block all the way here, the –
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– Methodist bought it and this their old Sunday School.

Bettie Tilley:
And that was his first home?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
That was his first home, and the Chrislers lived there already afterwards.  

Bettie Tilley:
Dr. Chrisler?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Um-hum, Dr. Chrisler bought it from the Carruthers.  But when we moved the only two families, the Galloway’s first and then the Carruthers bought it from them.  And – but there was no such thing as anybody repairing an automobile and we’d go out the old place every Sunday to church and I remember we had a puncture just about here.  And Mrs. Carruthers saw us and sent out her chauffeur to fix the car because we didn’t have a chauffeur, the boys, Bud and Swain would have had to get out and fix the car.  That was long before there was anything – and then the Speedway, they called it, in here I call it the Speedway all the time, the Parkway, had four rows of trees and it was narrow on each side.  And that part now –
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– it’s all grown with shrubbery and grass was a wide road where you could go fast. 


They would have these – we call them, “Thank you, ma’am,” I think.  I bump where you’d get to a street so – like they call it Speedway all the way to Riverside they’d say Speedway and have these bumpers to keep you from going too fast.  No stoplights, nothing to stop you.  But you slowed down when you got to a road.  If you didn’t, why you’d wipe out the back of the car.

Pat Fautry:
North of Parkway was the Speedway?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
North Parkway.

Pat Fautry:
All right, and what was Stonewall?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Stonewall wasn’t anything but Stonewall.  Never was anything but Stonewall.  The part of the north Parkway yet was not – didn’t have anything in the middle part, was what they called the Speedway, except they called the whole of the Parkway the Speedway.

Pat Fautry:
Oh, but – 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
But that part down the middle – 
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– went from Stonewall to Trezevant.  

Pat Fautry:
That was the real – 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
That was the real one where it was wide in the middle.

Pat Fautry:
Right.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
And you’d have a long stretch you could go fast because there wasn’t any street – wasn’t anything that you could turn off of that to the left or anything, because wasn’t anything built where Southwestern is, University – that was nothing but fields.

Pat Fautry:
Okay, but now in this area that we’re in right now, most of these streets were in here in 1910, 1912?  Forrest, Evergreen, Overton Park?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Now, I remember when we moved here Dad gave each one of us a lot on Lumpkin.  Well, there is no Lumpkin now; it's either Angelus or Avalon, one of those streets down there.  They called it Lumpkin.  And there wasn’t – I mean, most of these houses, I think Evergreen maybe started around –
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– I don’t know when.  You could find out when Colonel Galloway built Glenmary because that’s when they opened up Evergreen.


And Mr. E.O. Bailey had charge, which you can go down there and find out.  I mean, wouldn’t anybody paid taxes when they did anything.  But this – 

Pat Fautry:
What was Glenmary like?  What did it look like?  Was it a big two-story house?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
A great big two story.

Pat Fautry:
Brick?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
And we used it for the church for years and years –

Pat Fautry:
Yeah, I remember.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
– for the Sunday School.  It was green; it had white stone in front.  In fact, just last week Mary, next door, had Ewing Carruthers come get the stone Glenmary that was there where you had the hitching post for the – if you had a – 

Pat Fautry:
And this was Ewing’s mother and father who lived in that house?  They were the Carruthers family?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Not your Ewing.

Pat Fautry:
No.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
His father.

Pat Fautry:
Father.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
I mean – 

Pat Fautry:
Ewing, Senior.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
The Love’s lived down here.  Lillian Love’s mother was Roberta Carruthers –

[0:46:00]

– and she married Will Love and she lived in the house down
here that they ruined taking off the front and the porch, the red tile roof.  Wasn’t a – they’re either doctors or Southwestern Professors; nothing else has been sold on this street.

Bettie Tilley:
But Glen – 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
But Glenmary.
Begin Segment 9: [0:46:21]
Bettie Tilley:
And that, of course, would explain why that was named Galloway because Colonel Galloway built his home first on that – 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
He built his first home and Galloway was named for it.  And Forest here was named for the trees and the city has changed it to Forrest the man.

Bettie Tilley:
It was trees.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Because it wasn’t anything but one R in it.

Pat Fautry:
That’s what I was gonna ask you.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
And then when they started putting up street signs they began putting two R’s in it.  But it was nothing but the big oak that run in the backyard.  The children had to pay $1,000.00 to get down when I was gone.  Five feet across –
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– 15 feet around it, and a good green limb fell off and broke all my wires, and of course, wouldn’t have any lights or heat or anything until summer, and I wasn’t here.  


And I had to get a 75 foot crane and cut it in sections, the reason that it took too long – I had paid $116.00 once to have them move a limb that had fallen.  Didn’t cut a tree, didn’t do a thing but moved a limb.  Well, it knocked the dry and it would have broken.  But the limbs began falling off green.  I mean, the tree wasn’t dead, but something was wrong.


But on the inside there children wouldn’t believe me.  A great big piece of stone in the middle of this trunk.  So it evidently grew up around that stone.  But when they were cutting it, they cut this way and they cut this way.  Fortunately when they went one way, I mean, it didn’t hit it, the lower one.
[0:48:00]


Because that could have ruined all of that saw, everything.  But Glenmary over here, we had all of the – we used it for Sunday School all of those years and then there were a whole lot of servants houses, the janitor and all of them lived.  You played there in the grove.

Bettie Tilley:
Oh, yeah, right, right.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
You remember Joe.  Joe.  Oh, Joe was the most wonderful thing.  He was a janitor and over our church put all of his girls through college and they turned out nurses.  And I made a mistake once, Joe had appendicitis and I didn’t want him to go to the city hospital and I asked Percy if he wouldn’t – I mean, wanted him to operate on him, so we’d know.


That meant we had to pay for the room.  So the church paid for his room at the hospital and all, and then I wanted to go somewhere, we were going on a trip and I think Joe had a little fever because Percy wouldn’t leave him.
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Because just the janitor, but I didn’t get to take a trip when I had him fooling with Joe.  But no, Joe’s girls are – all went to whatever they call it college, and they turned out into wonderful – they had a boy (I didn’t care much about the boy).  He’d want to borrow my car.  Yeah, think he’d just could borrow the car to go out.  But I think he was up on the modern part of things.


But Joe built a beautiful home out here in Binghampton somewhere, because he came back and put the cabinets in my kitchen for me.  I’d call on Joe for anything.


But, oh, getting back to the house.  When they were working on the pipes I’d say, “Now, this new part of the house,” they’d say, “The new part of the house?”  I said, “When we bought 50 years ago Iwasn’t but seven years old.”  But I kept calling this the new part of the house.
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Because they’d have on lights, about four or five at each corner and then the chandelier come in the middle and the decorator took all that down.  But then they putting the whole bath above, solid tile all the way up, and they knew going into those brass plumbing that hadn’t been touched in all of those years.


So I gave him permission to knock the wall out in the nursery rather than tear all the tile down.  Well, from Christmas until April, Easter, they were still working on the house.  And Percy was bringing his two little boys to see me, said, “Oh, you all couldn’t do  that bad, that stay in there.  Wait until they’d gone.”


They were gonna be here just the weekend for Easter.  So when they were gone I went to the door and I met the man, I said, “Do you reckon we ought to have a little prayer meeting
first before you start on that?”  Because I hated to knock the wall out, but he said that that brass pipe hasn’t been –
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– touched in all these years.  But he went in and he unscrewed it.  I mean, he didn’t have to knock the wall down, but rather move the tile going to the ceiling, great big tile all the way there.  I was gonna let him knock the wall back because I had to knock the walls – 
Begin Segment 10: [0:51:18]
Bettie Tilley:
The Galloway’s just decided to build a new home?  I mean – 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
His wife died.

Bettie Tilley:
And so then – 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
His wife died, and he moved down to Alcazar, downtown.  And then in all of the coal business and everything, he met Widow Jones down in Alabama.  Widow Jones had two children which she was smart enough to have them take his name of Robert and Roberta.

Bettie Tilley:
Oh, I see.  So these were not his natural children?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Oh, no, he had no children.

Bettie Tilley:
Oh.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
No, Glenmary, when his wife died, he sold to the Carruthers and he was living at the Alcazar.  That’s downtown – 
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– a fancy – 

Pat Fautry:
At the what?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Alcazar was the name of it.  It was, I guess a fancy boarding house, hotel, or something.

Pat Fautry:
Okay, so when did the wife die?  Do you know about approximately?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
I would not know.

Pat Fautry:
Okay.

Bettie Tilley:
That’s pushing a little.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
I do not know when – 

Pat Fautry:
I was just – 
Bettie Tilley:
I think before she came out here.

Pat Fautry:
Yeah.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
No, unh-unh.

Pat Fautry:
It was here?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
I do not know.  But anyway, the Carruthers bought – 

Bettie Tilley:
Ewing Carruthers.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Big Ewing Carruthers.  Ewing’s father, A.B. Carruthers.  He wasn’t Ewing Carruthers.

Bettie Tilley:
Oh, he wasn’t Ewing, he was A.B.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
No, he’s A.B. Carruthers.

Bettie Tilley:
But young Ewing is alive and you might want to – 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
He is another gen-.
Bettie Tilley:
He’s my generation.
Jessie Latham Perkins:
He’s much younger.  I mean, he’s younger than I am, and he wouldn’t know on that because he’d be a little bitty boy.  I don’t remember.  No, he wouldn’t be born even then.
Bettie Tilley:
I grew up with him.
[0:53:00]
Pat Fautry:
Okay, so Robert and Roberta were stepchildren to Galloway?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Yeah.

Pat Fautry:
Okay, and then those were the only children?  Did he have any children with – 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
He did not have any children.

Pat Fautry:
No children at all?  Okay.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
No children by his first wife.

Pat Fautry:
And none by – 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
She was Mary and he named this Glenmary.  And then the Carruthers lived there when we first moved out here.  Then when Roberta married Will Love she moved in the house down the street here.  And Ewing Carruthers lived in the house next door here, young Ewing.

Bettie Tilley:
Young Ewing.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Lived here with his father.  And they had that house for, oh, long back a little show house.  I mean, next door here.  Then the Nivens lived there when I moved here.  He was the head of Progressive Farmer that started Southern Living and all.

Bettie Tilley:
Oh.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Yeah.

Bettie Tilley:
That’s interesting. 

Jessie Latham Perkins:
And they – over there.  Well, now, thank goodness, there’s some young people there, a Marine.

[0:54:00]
Pat Fautry:
And Nivens is N-i-v-e-n-s?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
They’re both dead; they’re dead.  She went out to Colorado – I mean, California with him, but he had charge of the Progressive Farmer and that’s what started.  When he died the biggest thing there was from Southern Living, at his funeral.

Pat Fautry:
Right.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
And she has died since then.  John Nivens was – oh, he was airplane pilot, fly around the world because I remember I’d see him sometimes, “Tell Percy I took his boss,” way over there somewhere in Europe, the head of GE.  He make the statement, “Tell Percy I took him so-and-so.”  But – 

Pat Fautry:
Mrs. Perkins, what about all those other bigger houses out on – down on Overton Park?  Who – were they generally there between McLean and the park?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Yea. Well, the Alexander’s and the Matthews’ and – 

Bettie Tilley:
What – remember which – Vance Alexander?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
No, no, Alexander the builder – 
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– not Vance Alexander.  Mildred Alexander married Quinn and she lived there afterwards.  And then the Matthews and another one and, oh, I don’t remember.

Pat Fautry:
But those were all built by 1910?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Huh?

Pat Fautry:
Those were built by 1910, ’11?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Well, some – I mean, not 1910, honey, I mean, because Paisley Hall was not built until ’11 and ’12.

Pat Fautry:
Okay, so they were built out in –

Segment 11: [0:55:29]
Jessie Latham Perkins:
They were built by – I mean, I went to parties there.  They had a basement.  All of them had a ballroom in the basement.  And then over there the Barker home, where Margie lives now, that was Judge Barker.

Pat Fautry:
Judge Barker, that’s Nell Hughes, Mrs. John –

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Huh?

Pat Fautry:
That was Nell Hughes’ – or no, that’s Jane Hughes.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Jane and – 

Bettie Tilley:
Mrs. Jimmy Hughes.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
– does Margie still live there?

Pat Fautry:
Margie still lives there.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Um-hum.

Pat Fautry:
Margie Anderson.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
And then, of course, later on the Cecil’s built their house.  The Jurgen’s house there – 
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– at corner of Overton Park and McLean.  That was built when I moved into an apartment just behind it in 1924.  But these houses along here, the Jones’ lived over here in the first house, Jenison Jones bought it from Allen Jones, and they have been there ever since.


And then Arthur Brewer’s in the next house.  And then down here where John Ford Connelly lives, that’s where, oh who’s was that – Louise Bennett lived.  I mean, you know, used to head over Louise Clark.

Pat Fautry:
Yeah.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Um-hum, she had lived there.  I don’t remember that was, of course, later on – built later on.  Mrs. Myra built that next little house, which Ben Pritchett’s mother.  The little – the only new one on this street.

[0:57:00]

Pat Fautry:
Oh, I see.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
The one down next – down next to the corner.  And – but most of the – I mean, I think you’d have – I don’t know if there’s be anything before 1909 ’10 or not, I’ll tell you.  I don’t know.


But they used to have – of course, the streetcar went down Galloway, that’s the reason that is so wide.  And they always had these trailers, big cars with a trailer on them, go all the way to Raleigh Springs.  So that was a way to get out to Raleigh Springs.  Well the Springs won all the church picnics and everything.
Bettie Tilley:
Down Galloway.

Pat Fautry:
Right down Galloway?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Huh?

Bettie Tilley:
On Galloway?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Down Galloway.  And went straight on through the park, but they would be open in the summer, remember this.  You can remember trailers.

Bettie Tilley:
Yeah.  Now I don’t remember the trailers.  I’ve heard about the trailers, but I don’t remember.  Of course, the streetcar –

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Well when I lived out in north Memphis –

[0:58:00]


– the river, even then, was way down low and they had [Inaudible] and that would overflow and they’d use mule cars every time the – that the river would rise in the spring, they’d have to use mule cars.

Bettie Tilley:
I see.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Cars would come and the mules take them across there –

Bettie Tilley:
Across the ferry.

Pat Fautry:
When you say that you went to school in the machine –

Jessie Latham Perkins:
That was a automobile.  Never called it anything but the machine.  We called automobiles machine.  I gave the man – oh, he was collecting old cars.  There was a license; I found some in the garage that I’d saved.  1919, 1924, you know, numbers for cars.  But there were very few cars in 1910.

Pat Fautry:
Okay.  What about other kids around here?  Would you all go in like – we call it carpool now.  There was – your parents took you as opposed to having any kind of a school bus –

[0:59:00]


– or wagonette come around?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
No, different ones would have a week of taking.  And then the neighborhood one would take for a week, and then they’d have the car when they’d go back.


Of course, when they’d get to high school, some of the children might want the car sometime.  There was no trouble parking; you could park wherever you wanted to.  You’d go to town, [Inaudible] thing here, about my brother Frank that was killed World War I.  He graduated in the law at UT at 20.
And he went down the bar, he never did practice law.
Segment 12: [0:59:35]   

But anyway, he would be – he was at the bank because he was waiting for his 21st birthday.  Before – so he could take his state bar examination.  And we’d go to town, we’d see the car, we’d get in, you know, ready to come home.  You’d see very few cars, he’d see the car, go get in it and he was getting ready to leave.  I’m – Swain and me sitting in it.  If he had taken it –
[0:60:00]



– if it wasn’t a week of taking them to school, but you could park wherever you pleased.  There were just a few cars, you’d go –

Pat Fautry:
What about some of the other streets around here?  I’m just looking at names, Arden –

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Well, now, Autumn was named for Autumn trees and then beyond, or within park Avenue, behind it, there wasn’t anything until you got to Poplar.


And then over the corner of McLean and Poplar was where Monteesi had a little tiny store.  Little Friend’s Store.  And that’s what I can remember; I think I told one of you this man in a buggy, I don’t know what he’d done.  They were chasing him, going – we called it Bailey’s Bottom, because it was uneven, but nothing from McLean – on McLean from Poplar to Overton Park Avenue.  Well there’s not a street cut through there –
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– now.

Pat Fautry:
Right.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Now there has been, but then that was nothing but just Bailey’s Bottom down there.
Pat Fautry:
Between Poplar and Overton Park on McLean was Bailey’s Bottom?

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Yeah.  

Pat Fautry:
Okay.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
And then they began building on Peach.

Pat Fautry:
Right.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Because the other houses, you can tell, because then as you go farther on, they’re bungalows.  But on Peach, now I was sitting on Overton Park Avenue once when it wasn’t raining – wasn’t raining.  But lightening came and in the open window, a ball of fire fell on the floor and it went like this and it went back together.

A child was killed crossing Peach by that lightning.  Hit the child then bumped into the – only time I’ve ever seen lightning.  It was like mercury that comes apart.  And it came in the window – well I was scared to death and I couldn’t let my –
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– children know how scared I was of the lightning and thunder.  

Had been always, because as a child I remember on the golf course we were out when we had all sorts of storms, and two people at the hotel had been killed when we got back.  So I was deathly afraid of the lightning and thunder, but there was, where you see the two-story houses there on Peach, they were the next built.  
Bettie Tilley:
Oh, Peach was.

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Um-hum.  And then you can notice on down the next that they’ll all be bungalows, because on the other side, these other two-story houses off of Evergreen, down where that old sort of a bayou thing, there were houses there.  I mean, and down here on Galloway, Overton Park Avenue, because many of the houses are down with other – torn down and either these little townhouses or other houses built on the place.  When we moved –
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– over here, the Wright’s lived across over here.  Luke Wright had been Governor-General of the Philippines, he had the parrot, you remember the parrot?
Bettie Tilley:
Yeah.  He lived in this area?
Jessie Latham Perkins:
Across the street there.  The Wright’s home always.  Always when – it wasn’t anything but the Wright home until just the last few years.

Bettie Tilley:
Is that so?  I have to –

Jessie Latham Perkins:
Well, over there, the red grill.  Well, anyway, they had this parrot and they’d be coming down the street “Iceman, watermelon” and the parrot would say, “Watermelon” and they’d go with that -
[End of Audio]
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